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Jaejinmusic.com (00:00:07):
Yay.
Adapted Podcast (00:00:08):
Welcome to adapted podcast. Season five episode 17 starts now
Jaejinmusic.com (00:00:18):
Feel the sun rising from below. I keep running. I keep running to a place where no one knows it's
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:00:30):
What I've needed most is the becoming the parent to myself that I've always needed. That I, that I missed out on
Jaejinmusic.com (00:00:38):
Way to go.
Adapted Podcast (00:00:40):
Hi, I'm your host, Kami Lee. You're listening to one of the first Korean adoptee podcasts ever created with over a hundred interviews. We talk about all things related to the international adoptee experience. Thanks to Jae Jin for our show opening music to find out more, go to jaejinmusic.com. In one of the longest interviews in the podcast history. This next story centers on the theme of mothers, we'll hear from an adopted woman who experienced the loss of not only her original mother, but her adoptive one too. And while on the verge of becoming one herself, what it was like to find her natural mother again now onto the show, no
Jaejinmusic.com (00:01:21):
One knows is a big sky.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:01:26):
Great. Hi, I'm Carisa St. Laurent. I currently live in Liberty Hill, Texas, although that might be changing soon and I'm 48 years old. It, you know, becoming a mother was probably the most profound experience of my life. And definitely had to do with the fact of, of just having had growing up, you know, as, as many of your listeners probably can relate to of just not having anybody that was my, my blood or that looked like me. You know, just even the, that basic <laugh> basic human need of having anyone who looked like me and who I could identify with in that way. So that was a major major thing for me. And then, you know, on a personal level, it was extremely transforming because I, I just, you know, I was in a, a state when we, you know, still still healing, which I still am, right.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:02:32):
It never ends still healing, still transforming, still evolving into my true wise soul self. But at that time I was a little, not as advanced in this journey. And although I had processed so much of, of this pain and trauma and suffering, I was still really in that phase of self abuse and self destructive behaviors, things that were you know, the opposite of self care, the opposite of self love. I was, you know, I was in a, a state of alcohol addiction. I call it that. And I, and I say that with the knowing that there are people who are much more addicted than I was. And, and so I'm always careful of how I, or I, I guess I always like to put that caveat on it that and maybe I don't have to, I don't know. It just feels <laugh>, it feels like that's what I need to do to honor the pain and suffering that other people have experienced with that kind of addiction.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:03:42):
For me, it was for sure something I experienced that impeded my life that stopped me from being in my full health, my full self and my full knowing and understanding of the power that I had within me. It was a solve to my pain and my suffering. It was a way to avoid who I really am. I mean, it was all those things. So I chalked that up to addiction because, you know, it was something I couldn't live without, at that time. It was, you know, I needed it for fun. I needed it for, you know, life and I, I think it just become very habitual in my, my life, my lifestyle. And I could go on a tangent about that because I think we live in such a, a society that is, it's so easily to, easy to get addicted to things, whether it's something like alcohol drugs, or it's addicted to recognition and success, or work or accomplishments in general, or addicted to, you know, all those other vices that, that we're surrounded with.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:04:57):
And so I spent a lifetime in that state, in that place of okay. I'm I understand once I did understand, you know, what kind of circumstance I was actually in from a mental, emotional level and started to address those things. I still spent decades trapped in that cycle of, okay, I'm gonna address these things and heal and work on some stuff, but then I'm also going to continue to drink away my <laugh> my worries, or, you know, do whatever. I mean, other things too that were allowing me to avoid the, really the deepest deepest stuff and having my son was another turning point milestone in facing myself and, and realizing, oh, I am not <laugh> at the place that I think I am. I am not at this elevated soul consciousness healed place that I really think I am, I have so much work to do still. And the motivation to do that was him.
Speaker 4 (00:06:30):
Do you know specifically, do you have pinpointed why you started?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:06:35):
Yeah, I think, you know, there's some common elements, you know, not maybe just because of adoption and abandonment. And, but certainly that was my thing. That was the reason for me that would maybe equate to someone else's reason of, you know, their, they had a abusive parent or, you know, there, right. We've all got a reason, a trigger. And that trigger for me of being disconnected to the real root right. This, this mother, this country, this language, all the things that I lost as I was adopted, I was three. So I came over after, and I know my story because I've met my birth mother and I know what happened. But I was only in the orphanage for a month and a half, and then came to the United States and, and into this new family. So it was just like, this is this overnight probably felt like to me, transform transformation change that I, you know, it's, I don't remember it.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:07:44):
So I can't say, oh, it was traumatic in these ways. I can just know deeply in my bones, how traumatic that must have been for me. So I know that drinking was tied to that because I was one drinking to be popular and, oh, you know, all the cool kids drinking, two drinking. Then when I felt the effects able, allowed me to be free of the anxiety that I experienced. So the anxiety that I had growing up honestly, was probably more tied to my adoptive family than it was to my birth family or to my birth conditions and, and the birth the being relinquished and all of that. I was adopted when I was three and raised in New Hampshire. And probably not unlike a lot of your listeners, you know, in a, all white community and not among other Koreans or Asians or, or really anybody who was not white.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:08:55):
And so my earliest, my earliest memories were of not liking who I was at the most surface, which was my looks in my appearance because I didn't look like anyone else around me. My mom, my adoptive mom is blonde and blue-eyed and beautiful. And I wanted to look like her, you know, and I, so all, all of that was a struggle. This identity struggle at the beginning because I felt that way inside. I felt like them <laugh>, you know, I felt like all of them, I didn't feel there was no, I had no traces of my Korean identity anymore. In my conscious mind, even though I came over or only spoke Korean, I, I didn't you know, I had to learn English and all of that, that was was quick to transform and then gone for my consciousness. So all I know in my conscious life is, is feeling white. And so when I looked at myself, I just hated what I saw.
Adapted Podcast (00:10:19):
And do you have brothers and sisters?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:10:21):
I do. I have a, a brother who my parents had biologically before they adopted me. So he was four years old when I came over.
Adapted Podcast (00:10:28):
Okay. So it wasn't infertility issues?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:10:32):
No, no. They the story that they've shared, at least my Mo my mother shared this. I'm not, I haven't actually corroborated this with my dad, but my mom said that when the Vietnam war was ending, they wanted to adopt a, a Vietnamese child from Vietnam. But that was difficult and it never came to be, so the adoption agency said, oh, you know, there's actually adoptees in Korea and it's not that far away. And they basically looked the same <laugh> I don't know if that's what they said, but, you know, there was too appealing to, you know, this, these, this white couple, like, Hey, you know, Hey, so not that far off. And so that's why they, they chose ended up choosing me because of, of, I guess, wanting to save or help a child out of Vietnam. Who'd been whose parents had been killed potentially in the war.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:11:44):
My family life was somewhat typical, I would say of growing up in the seventies, eighties in a white suburb, but it was atypical in the sense of, you know, my, my mother, my adopted mother, you know, she had a traumatic childhood, extremely traumatic childhood was also adopted and struggled a lot. And that cannot be separated from the way I was raised and the way that the, what happened within our own, in our relationship. And then my parents got divorced, which was difficult. And she moved, like I said away across the country. So it wasn't just, you know, it wasn't like, well, I could visit her on the weekends or anything like that. So we and that happened, you know, fairly early on. So I was adopted when I was three. I my parents got divorced when I was 14. She moved then. So not, you know, with my childhood is marked by a lot of tragedy trauma, but within it sweet moments, you know, I would say there's, you know, some, some sweet and lovely things in between. But also these really dark heavy things that what overshadowed a lot of what I experienced and, and what I held deeply within
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:13:23):
My brother and I, you know, very close early on, but, you know, I, I, I believe that, you know, our mom moving away really, really hurt him deeply and it hurt our relationship, he, and, and my relationship, so that we're that we know it drove a wedge between us as well.
Adapted Podcast (00:13:46):
That must have, that must have hurt you, that she would move and move so far away.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:13:51):
It was more deeply traumatizing than, you know, in, in the work that I've done, the healing that I've done the recognition of, of my trauma over the years. I, I, I think that it was more traumatizing than my original relinquishment to be honest. And so at the time I didn't recognize that at the time it was all just whew, stuffed down, just not in my consciousness at all. But deeply painful. And, and, and, you know, the, the, the facts around it, at least my memories of the facts around it, or, or that I could have moved with her, you know, it wasn't like she just ran off and left us. She wanted us to move with her. And but I wasn't ready to make that decision, or, you know, it was a decision that was so, so hard for me and I chose otherwise, you know, so I, I had to, I was forced to make that decision.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:15:00):
I chose to stay and finish high school in New Hampshire and, you know, she moved to Beverly Hills and it was, you know, I saw that high school. I, I visited, there was no way that my insecure 14 year old self would have been able to do that. At least I didn't think I could at the time, maybe, maybe had I, you know, gotten into that situation and who knows where life would've gone at that point. I didn't feel at all capable of taking that on and just completely changing my life. So I stayed in New Hampshire and, and she moved.
Adapted Podcast (00:15:42):
Okay. So you guys were given the choice, you were, you remember. Okay. Mm-Hmm <affirmative> and which is a hard choice for any kid. Why did she have to move so far away?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:15:53):
Her family was there, you know, she, she was adopted also, but she also reunited with her birth family her birth origins and half sisters of hers that all grew up in Los Angeles and my, her father, her you know, birth father lived there. And I think she, I just think for her, it was a, a safer place to go than remaining in New Hampshire. And I think she saw opportunity there and a way for her to on the one hand be more herself, but probably on the other hand to escape herself too. So I don't know all of her reasons for that, but those are some, some of them and you know, LA to her was, was really exciting. She, she moved and had a completely different life than, you know, being a, a homemaker, a mom in New Hampshire.
Adapted Podcast (00:16:58):
So do you think that being adopted in any way impacted her parenting?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:17:05):
Oh, absolutely. I mean, it's like, I, you know, I was saying earlier that there, it's hard to separate a, a fact like that even, and, and extrapolate that over a whole thing. Like her parenting, that there's a lot to that impacted her parenting that came from the, the trauma of her childhood. And part of the trauma of her childhood is the adoption. My mother was adopted when she was 10 and prior to that was in and out of state homes. And if any, you know, so, so conscious of not being wanted by her mother. Whereas I don't have memory. I know it's in my subconscious that this feeling of not being wanted by my mother, although that that's not, I know that's not true now, but I know growing up in my, at least in my subconscious, I had that feeling, but she had that conscious knowing that her mother didn't want her for, for whatever reasons it would put her in and out of these state homes until she finally gave her up for adoption and at 10. And so that whole, everything impacted her parenting.
Adapted Podcast (00:18:26):
Did you feel close to her growing up? Did you feel you had a close connection?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:18:31):
I felt like I had a close connection. I felt like I, I needed a close connection, but maybe didn't know how to have that close connection. So I don't know. It was, it's like you're thrown a life raft and you're drowning in the ocean and someone throws you this life raft and it might have a bunch of patches on it. And it's maybe got a slow leak in it, but it's all you've got. And I clung to that thing. So I don't know whether my closeness with her was out of desperation of just needing to be close to someone and a mother, or if it was real and true in therapy years later, my mom and I have only done therapy therapy together. We did it when my parents got divorced. And then later on in my early adulthood, we went and we saw her therapist together.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:19:35):
And she said in that session that she never felt like I bonded with her. So you can take that <laugh> as you will, the way I took it was that she blamed me for not bonding with her, but what did she do to bond with me? I don't know if she had the capability to bond with me. So, you know, I spent many years blaming her for that, not bonding with me, not doing X, Y, or Z doing X, a, B, and C. Right. All of those things. But in the end, she did what she could do BA you know, in the light of who she is as a person, all of her experiences, all of the traumas I know about. And, and I'm sure many of the ones I don't know about. And that didn't amount to great parenting mothering when you look at it objectively, but it is what she could do.
Adapted Podcast (00:20:55):
You're not close with her now. You're
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:20:57):
Not, no, we haven't spoken in 11 years. It's deeply tied to finding my birth mother and what she, what she, I think feels was the, this final rejection.
Adapted Podcast (00:21:11):
And by connecting with your birth mother, that was the final rejection.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:21:14):
So I think that's how it went down in her mind. And so painful for her that she then, you know, broke our ties. She hasn't, I mean, she's tried to reconnect our ties. She's reached out. She's wanted to, but I've chosen not to because, and that is tied to all the other life stuff, the, the history of our life together.
Adapted Podcast (00:21:47):
How did you find your birth family?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:21:51):
Wow. So when I was 35, my husband and I got married and we decided to go to Korea and Japan for our honeymoon. And even in the decision to go there, I was still not even thinking, oh, birth family search, gonna do this whole thing. He however, was like, well, okay, if we're gonna go to Korea, we should contact your orphanage. We should, you know, go try to do some digging. And it took a little bit of convincing. I, I wasn't, my entire life was not prepared to do that. Didn't want to all the excuses right. Of, oh, oh, I was abandoned, naked at a police station. There's no, you know, there's no way I'm gonna find out who, you know, anything anyway. So why even bother, you know, all of those different excuses. And however, since realized, you know, it was all just the, those excuses were a cover up to the emotional pain. I wasn't ready to face.
Adapted Podcast (00:22:50):
Yeah. The ambivalence was a way to protect yourself. Oh,
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:22:53):
For sure. For sure. And so I, I needed somebody like my husband to, to be enthusiastic about it and be really curious with me about it and
Adapted Podcast (00:23:06):
They don't have the baggage connected to it. So it's funny how spouses can be so like excited and, and other people like, oh, did you meet your birth family? Like it's and they don't, they don't carry with it. They don't understand. They don't feel the, just how heavy it is.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:23:24):
Exactly. And they don't shut down when it starts to feel really heavy. And it starts to be hurtful and painful and like, oh, I'm worried about where this is gonna go. They don't go into that shutdown mode. And so he, you know, he was my night <laugh> through the, all of that and encouraged me to contact the orphanage. And I sent off an email. I mean, one thing which I found was miraculous because, and I was adopted in 76 and I never had any inkling or thought that this agency would still be around. You know, I just thought, oh, that was so long ago. It, it can't even exist. I just Googled it. And there, it was, I'm like, oh, <laugh>, they're actually still in operation. Okay. So I sent them an email and asked for an appointment. I wanted to, you know, open up my birth family search and, and sent them my K number.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:24:20):
And then it was a couple months that went by before I heard anything. And I got an email a couple months later, and it was super simple, very short said, you know, here's your appointment, date and time. Yes. You know, looking forward to meeting you. And then it said at the end, we have information on your birth mother. And I com what <laugh>, you know, it's just completely shocking because not unlike most, I think Korean adoptees, my parents were told. And so therefore my knowing my entire life was that I was abandoned at a police station, naked, no information, Jane DOE just brought to the orphanage and, and that's where it all began. So there was never any information on me that we knew about. And this was, you know, the early days of Korean adoption, not early, early, obviously that all began in the fifties. But the earlier stage, I would say of where there were, were still that kind, that, that kind of cover up and that kind of subterfuge,
Adapted Podcast (00:25:28):
Your parents were told your parents were told a story.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:25:30):
Oh yeah. They were told lies, complete lies. So we get this email, we have information on your birth mother couldn't believe it. And then shot back an email with a gazillion questions on what, how, who, where the, you know, all the questions. And then I didn't hear back from them again, a couple more months. I no response from them, which was you know, at first it was a little bit irksome, but then just like everything else that I had learned to do in my life, I just shut it away. I just was like, okay, well, I'll just go put that over here in this box that I don't have to deal with. And we'll just go and we'll see what happened. So I put it out of my mind. And and then we went, we went to Korea and our, we landed in Seoul, went to the orphanage the next day and got there and walked into our meeting room.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:26:30):
And she, the woman walks in with a, well, they bring gifts. They brought me, you know, some Korean items at first the gifts. And so someone that brought those in and just didn't even say anything, they just kind of like put them there, left. And then mark and I are sitting there that's my husband, and just going, what's going on? You know what, and it was a very fairly small conference room for our standards. Right. It, you know, conference, it was a conference room, but it wasn't what you picture as this American conference room. It was this little, teeny room, super bright fluorescent lights. And it was hot as Hades in there. It was so, so it felt like we hear, oh, my we being interrogated to it, this something's happening. They bring these gifts walk out. And then what felt like ages later, this woman comes in and she had her a file and she just sits down and, you know, just very simple pleasantries and asks me, you know, some things about myself now, you know, where, how is my life now?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:27:38):
Oh, you know, this is your husband. Okay. You know, just some basics. And then she just opens it up and starts to tell me all about my life and my, my birth mother, her age her job where she lived and, and just starts giving me this information. But what the, what, I, don't not sure if either you or any of your other guests have, did experience this, but she would give me information and then she would stop. And then she would say, what else would you like to know? And I would go <laugh> okay. And I would come up with with more questions and she would answer them and then she would stop. And she would say, what else would you like to know? <Laugh> it was like, just please tell me everything that is in there, but it was this process. It was this, this very grueling kind of 
Adapted Podcast (00:28:37):
Like the, the onus was on you to find out the information, but she wasn't going to freely give it
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:28:43):
Exactly. It was like, I had to ask the right questions or I had to ask all the questions, everything I wanted to know. And she was only gonna tell me the things I asked. And so, okay. Imagine if I hadn't asked about X, Y, or Z I, I wouldn't have known that. And you know, not being able to take the file or a copy of the file is, is at the time, you know, I, we had, no, I had no rights to my, my adoption record.
Adapted Podcast (00:29:13):
Shouldn't take it. They wouldn't let you take it.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:29:15):
Couldn't take a copy. So I just had to write everything down that she was telling me that, that she was answering all of my questions. And so it was a really infuriating sort of process, but I stayed, I tried to stay centered and mark just helped me greatly during the time, because he would, you know, remind be like, I'd turned to him and be like, please help, because I don't remember. And he'd be like, ask about your time. I'm like, okay. And then I would ask more questions. And so that's what the process went. And it, it went back and forth, back and forth. And, and I don't know if that's just the way the process goes or whether she was doing something that was not protocol. And she was like, okay, well, here's a way I can tell you more as if you ask me <laugh> the question. I am not sure exactly what was going on, but that's, that's how it all went down. Got I got all this information and then they said, okay, well, she said, we will try to find her now. Now that you've,
Adapted Podcast (00:30:19):
What year? What year was it? And what, what agency? This,
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:30:22):
This was 2008 and Korea, Social Services, KSS.
Adapted Podcast (00:30:30):
And, and were, was the information on your records that you saw redacted, like names? Did they tell you names at that point?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:30:38):
But yeah, they told me names. They told me they had pictures, they had two photos of me that she gave me. Actually, those are the only things that I got. I didn't get the information, but she gave me these photos and they had my Cray name and birthdate on the back. And I couldn't see, like, I, I was peeking over to try to see into the papers that she was reading. And I didn't see any reduction. I didn't get to look at it. I never, she didn't like slide it in front of me and go, okay, here, it's all in Korean. I couldn't have read it anyway. But it was just what she gave me for information. And having gone through this process, which took, you know, this two year journey that I went on, I do now know that there's things that she didn't tell me that were in there that that were never shared.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:31:32):
And that's just because of what I've learned since then. So it was a wild process. After that we spent, you know, the rest of our honeymoon in Korea, we went to Japan and then we got back and waited. We waited, waited, waited. It was six, seven months or so. And we didn't hear a thing from them. And, you know, maybe that's not a lot of time for them, you know, to try to find a missing person or, you know, this person that maybe didn't wanna be found, who knows obviously can take any amount of time, but it felt like forever for me. And it also felt like forever because they didn't actually get back in touch with me. I sent them many emails during that period of time and never got a response. So it felt, I felt like they weren't trying that they weren't looking that, you know, who knows what they were doing, but it didn't feel like anything because I had no communication around it.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:32:28):
And so I contacted goal and Jane at track at the time, you know, who were based in Seoul and asked them for Jane Trenka. Yes. Yeah. And, and I reached out to both them both of those organizations and asked for their help and they both, yeah. They both got on it as far as, you know, we'll see what we can do. We'll help out in whatever way we can. And within a month, I think, or short amount of time that's when I got an email from them. So it could have been all coincidental or it could have been pressure that they had put on from within country in Seoul, who knows. But I got an email coincidentally at I was at an AKA conference in New York city. When I got this email, I'm sitting on a break and I, you know, go onto my Blackberry to check my emails. And I see this email from KSS, oh my God, <laugh> I yelled at my husband. I'm like, and he comes over and we read it together. And the, she apologized at first for not having been in touch, but then said, we reach, we found your mother's sister. And she told us that your mother moved to the United States, approximately she didn't know, but 20 ish years ago, and that she didn't know where she was now, but the last she knew she was in New York.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:34:00):
We, we look at each other. My, we literal, like we were what, and we're sitting in this cafe in New York city, not very far from the, you know, Korean, it's not really a Korea town in New York city, but you know, the, the Korean portion of Manhattan because that's where they, you know, they planned the AKA conference near there. And we're literally sitting like a block from there with this email that that's the last known place she was in. And we freaked out. We <laugh>, we ran out of the cafe. We ran over to this like one strip of Korean businesses. And I wish we had video of this because we probably looked like complete lunatic. We ran into these businesses and just like, started asking, like, do you know? And, you know, ask them if they knew my mother, if they, you know, she, she owned a salon and you know, this is her name. And everyone just looked at us like, oh my God, they are insane. And just like with fearful eyes would just shake their heads in us. And we <laugh>, we would leave and run, you know, breathless to the next place. And we did that, you know, we hit all the businesses in this block or two of, of space and knew that it was a long shot, knew that it was crazy, but couldn't not do it because of what we had just found out. And 
Adapted Podcast (00:35:22):
Did you look, and you probably looked at all the women kind of like your mother's age that you saw?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:35:27):
Oh yeah. Just like every face, right? Like, do I see myself in that face? Is that like, does, this is someone who looks like me? And we, we, at that point knowing, well, we were also told at that point, through that email that I had a brother or sister that my mother had been married before me or before she had me. So that was not information that I had from the visit to KSS found out that my older sister and older brother existed for one and that my older sister had also moved to the United States as well. When she was 16. So we had that information, my mother, the information on, about my mother and that my mother had remarried and that we had his name in this email along with the fact that he was a real estate agent.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:36:24):
So we had all of these like really interesting information, kind of like, you know, just this, these facts that a detective might use to try to piece together a case. And, and that's what my, my husband did. He took charge really you know, cause at this point as exciting and amazing and wonderful and extraordinary of circumstances that it was, I was also shutting down and getting into this place of this is too much. This is getting too real. I, I don't know. It's get, you know, it's, it's, it's becoming heavy. And so he's like, I'm on it. <Laugh> he? He, along with a friend just did, just did crazy internet searching and pieced together through people search sites and all of these, like, you know, the internet is a crazy wild open place. If you dig <laugh> deep enough and <laugh> on the one hand, it's like, oh man, there's, there's a lot in there about all of us that we probably don't know about because we were able to find and piece together, more facts that potentially tied to, to them, you know, still didn't know, but we pieced together because of addresses that they shared these three names.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:37:57):
We're like, okay, well that's gotta be them. They all shared this one address. That's gotta have been one of their addresses and this is, was in New York. And so, but piecing information like that together, they found these three addresses that could potentially be tied to my birth mother. And during this two year period, we found my my, my birth mother's husband, the guy that she had been married to and actually spoke to him on the phone. He said, you know, we, he identified himself as yes, he, he was married to her and then was just like, but no, I don't know where she is. And I, and he hadn't, he didn't wanna add anything to do with this. And, you know, he wasn't very open to our questions. And so
Adapted Podcast (00:38:45):
Was he American?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:38:46):
No Korean man.
Adapted Podcast (00:38:48):
So is this her husband in America?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:38:52):
He, she married him at some point when, after she had moved to the states.
Adapted Podcast (00:38:58):
Okay. So she had married a Korean I immigrant or a Korean American, right. Okay.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:39:03):
Yes. And he we had become friends with a, a woman, a Korean woman who her and her husband, her husband was a professor and, and they were on his year sabbatical and they lived in the states. So we met them during that period of time and became friends with them. And so she helped us with communication. So she helped us with these phone calls. And I spoke to my aunt through her and she spoke to this my mother's hus ex-husband and trans, you know, she spoke to him in Korean. He spoke English, but, you know, she spoke to him in Korean just for comfort levels. And then I just listened in and then she told us what he said. So every communication we had within the, the Mo the bulk of that two years was dead, were dead ends. So as much information as my husband had discovered it all just led to these dead ends.
Adapted Podcast (00:40:06):
Well, let me, let me ask Corissa, did, did did this man who was, had been married to your mother or your birth mother, did he seem to, had he been aware of you?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:40:18):
No. He wasn't aware of me. He didn't wanna have anything to do with this conversation, even he was, he was not very helpful. I mean, he, he actually hung up on our, our friend probably five times before he said anything. So he was highly suspicious. And I don't know if that's just his nature <laugh> or he was suspicious of what was, what we were trying to do, but he just was not helpful. And then finally he said some things which were that, yes, he was married to her. No, he doesn't know where she is. He doesn't want anything to do with this. And bye. So we got that out of him. But that's about it. So, yeah, I guess we never got to ask him that, like, did he even know about me, but he, he wasn't giving up any information.
Adapted Podcast (00:41:07):
And the aunt, the bio aunt that was in the states, did she have, was she helpful?
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:41:14):
Actually, she was actually in Korea, so she was not we spoke to her long distance long. She spoke zero English. So LaMi spoke, you know, spoke to her. And then I actually spoke to her, meaning my, the phone was up at my ear <laugh> and she was speaking to me and I told her, you know, I I'm sorry, I don't speak Korean. I said it probably three times during the conversation, but she just kept going, going, going, just talking, talking, talking to me. And I heard in her voice, in her tone regret, I heard compassion in her tone. And then LOI told me that she didn't know about me, that she, they had no idea. And she, she felt she did feel regretful about that and not having known and sh she was really sorry. And so that was our conversation. And that was the only time I ever spoke to her. I, I probably do have her number somewhere, but that was that one conversation.
Adapted Podcast (00:42:27):
Yeah. So, I mean, how did, what was the next step or what you must have felt that it had all, like, it was kind of exciting. You had suddenly, like names were popping up and, and leads, but then they didn't lead anywhere. And then you were also like afraid of where they would lead. So there just must have been so much going on in your, in your
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:42:51):
Head. Yeah. It was a, an emotional roller coaster. And I was very, like I said, I don't know if I would've made it through without my husband or gotten to the point of which we did without him, because I, I probably would've said, okay, let me off <laugh> I want, I want off the rollercoaster now. But yeah, it was really, you know, it got to the point where the disappointment was so real that we stopped, we stopped the search. And we also, you know, if we had just gotten married I had, you know, this new corporate job. I mean, I also wanted to experience my life as it was without this story, without this search going on as well. And so that's the sort of rational part on the one hand. And then the other part was the emotional depths that I wasn't ready to go to yet.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:43:46):
So I needed, needed that break. And so we took a break. Actually I don't, I don't remember how long it was, but we decided in our, in our life to have a child. And we did it <laugh>, you know, we got pregnant pretty quickly and when I was pregnant or, you know, within the first month or so we you know, we, we decided together that we were gonna start the search again. And, you know, for me, you know, at that point I'm 37 and <affirmative>, and we're gonna have a baby. Our life was already busy. I mean, we traveled a ton. I, you know, worked just, we just had a, you know, a vibrant life. I felt like if we didn't do it then, and now it may never happen. I may, I may discard it for other things in my life.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:44:38):
And my husband was super determined too. He's like, yes, we gotta do it now. And so we had these three addresses that never amounted to anything by phone. But they were all close by. We lived in, in New Hampshire at the time. All of these addresses were in flushing, New York, which is part of Queens. And we were like, screw it. Let's just go, we'll go down there and visit these addresses and see if we can meet anybody that might know her, know where she was. None of these addresses that we had were her address, at least on paper. None of them were like, oh, this could be her residence, but we figured someone, we might find somebody. So one of them was a salon that she had owned maybe that address, the other was potentially this real estate ex-husband's address.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:45:30):
And then the other was potentially my sister's residence. And so we booked a trip, went down to New York and I was in my first trimester of pregnancy at the time and super nauseous, sick, exhausted, I would sleep like on my face for four hours a day couldn't could barely stay awake. But we drove down and just did the search. We met a translator who we were connected to through a Korean church in New Hampshire where we lived and they set us up with a translator who met us in flushing. And this woman connected with us there created a flyer that we were gonna post all over flushing. And and then we set out to go and visit these three addresses. And so the, the, the journey from literally like getting down there, which we did, we kind of, I think we drove down.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:46:31):
It's about, you know, four and a half hour drive from where we lived in New Hampshire to New York city, Queens, where we were going. And we got there in the afternoon, met grace at the hotel and went, she, we went, we created a flyer together. And then we went out to, you know, in the late afternoon to visit these three addresses and hit all three of them. And within that period in my, my whole life changed within this one afternoon evening we never put the flyers up. We went to the first address and that was the salon, this salon that she could have potentially owned. And we had spoken to those own, you know, them before coincidentally the woman we spoke to at the salon shares the name of my sister. So when we called originally this woman answers the phone, she asked my sister's name.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:47:35):
We were like, are you this, you know, particular person? No, not her. Okay. So that's why it was all these connections that were so close, but nothing amounted to them. And it felt like she didn't wanna be found. It felt like this was, you know, a, a fruitless kind of search. But when we got there, when we visited the salon, we met that woman who has my sister's name. And she it wa she was way younger than my sister would be. So we knew it wasn't her. There were no, you know, no cover up going on there. When we got to flushing and went to these three addresses, you know, they were all, you know, addresses. We had tried to contact before the salon, you know, we tried to reach, spoke to them. Woman had my sister's name. I mean, it was so crazy coincidental where we were like, you have to be her, but no, it wasn't her.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:48:37):
We then meet this woman face to face. It's not her, she's much too young to be my sister. So that was a, a dead end. And then we go to the next address, which was the ex-husband, who is a real estate agent. And we get there and meet the guy. I mean, he happens to be home and it was just so miraculous that he even, you know, that we even got to stand in front of him. And, and he, he, he had the same reservations as he had on the phone, but, you know, now there's like two Korean women standing in front of him going, excuse me, <laugh> and being, you know, it's a little more persistent when they're right, you know, at your doorstep. So he went a little further in giving us a, a teeny bit more information, which was that the last he knew my birth mother lived in Connecticut and then emphasized that he didn't wanna have anything to do with this.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:49:34):
And, you know, please go and, and all of this stuff. So we, we left him. And then the last address we had was the one that we honestly thought would be the, the least the, the worst lead, because it was very, it wasn't as sure of a bet that this could be connected in any way to my birth mother. And it was potentially my birth sister's last residence. And so we go to this, this place and we go to the, you know, where the tenant listing is on a, on an apartment building. And we go to the apartment number and it had literally been recently covered over with a tick, you know, the ticker ticker tape that makes a, a temporary name. And we just look at this, my husband literally like locked. You know, he like dropped his head in complete you know, just defeat that.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:50:34):
How could we be so close and I'll look at it just with this apartment, which, you know, she just moved, oh my cat. And he started walking away from the building and I took a deep breath and looked at the rest of the tenant listing and just scrolled further down from that apartment number. And I saw another ticker tape, new listing, and it was my sister's initial first the initial of her first name and her last name on a different apartment number. And I screamed at him cuz he had already started walking back to the car. He was like, I'm done. And I was like, come back mark. And he, and I was like, look, look, look. And as soon as he came back up the door opened of the apartment building and a man was walking out. And so we were like, oh, Hey, thanks.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:51:26):
And we slipped into the apartment building and her apartment number. The, the one we were found happened to be just right on that first floor. And we go over and knock on the door. I had mark HDE because <laugh>, I didn't want, you know, my, my husband's white he's, you know, six feet tall. I just didn't want her to feel like sh she was being, you know, set on set upon by anyone. So it was just grace and I went to the door and a woman answered and we, grace spoke to her in Korean and but it was, you know, E I could tell the context of what she was saying was like, are you my sister's name? And then she said, are you the daughter of my mother's name? And then she just blurts out in English, this is your sister <laugh>. And I, and I just froze.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:52:18):
I was like, wait why'd you say that like she does, she doesn't know who I am and, and, oh my, we, we just let the cat out the bag. And that was super crazy and sensitive. But my, my this woman just swings the door open and she just yells out my name in like a, it wasn't exactly my name, but what I found out is like, it's the common form of my name. So my Korean name is Byul nim and she said, "Byor-im", and I, I look at her and I was like, you know who I am? And she was like yes, of course I know who you are, I'm your sister. And I, I was just like, cause my whole world was spinning because I, you know, I had no idea whether or not she would know about me, you know, my birth, my, my origins are, you know, from this, you know, unmarried, you know, my mother was UN not married to the, my father.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:53:16):
And that's how, you know, that's how I ended up where I am. And so I had no idea that she would know who I was. She was older than me. She's five years older and you know, come to find out. She, although my mother, my birth mother and her first husband were divorced. My brother and sister would come to Seoul every summer and live with and stay with my birth mother. So from the moment I was born, my sister has known me and was with me until so she was eight years old when I was given up. So she absolutely knew I was, she was crying. She was like, how'd you find me? And so we went in and then I had, you know, I had to introduce my husband and like take him out of the shadows. And she invited us all in and we just sat down and told her the story of how we found her.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:54:11):
And we were, you know, in between tears and, and, and amazement and, you know, how is this all happening? She just picks up her phone and she's like, okay, well, I'll, I'll call mom. And I <laugh> just so in that moment, which was spanned from, you know, late afternoon, it's now, you know, sun is setting it's November in new England. So, you know, the sun was starting to go down. So just within this short timeframe, I go from showing up to in New York, in flushing, ready to hang up these flyers to now my sister am sitting in her living room and she's about to call my birth mother. And so she calls her and they start talking and they're speaking in Korean she's saying, and I could hear her. She's kind of like getting excited, excited, like what, like trying to calm my mom down.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:55:12):
She's like, Byul nim's in my living room and she's trying to calm her down. And then they're speaking a Korean a little bit. And then she, my sister, I hear her say, because she looks just like you. So what my birth mother had said was like, how do you know, how do you know it's her? And yeah, so my sister says, says that, and then I start crying because I don't, you know, I don't know at, at that point it was real, like she's talking to my real mother, she's talking and, you know, it was just completely surreal. And I was, you know, out of my body at the time, didn't have the same emotions, honestly, that I'm having now, because I was so in this heightened state of vigilance and, and in shock, you were in shock.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:56:09):
What shock? Yeah, totally. Just like I, what is happening in wanting to make sure I didn't miss anything? So I think I was so in my head, not in my body and she just hands the phone to me. And I'm just all of a sudden connected on the phone with my, my mother. And she has a heavy accent and starts talking to me. And I don't even really remember what I said to her. I remember her saying I'm, I'm so sorry. And, and I you know, she, she was apologetic, she was crying, she was regretful. She was kind of hyper. It was. And I was just like staying, trying to stay calm because <affirmative> because that calm center was the only place I could operate from at that moment. Otherwise I felt like I would've just lost, lost it emotionally. So I was just like, it's okay.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:57:13):
It's okay. And yes, it's me. And so I remember saying those things and then, and then I think she may have been in midstream saying something. I just handed the phone back to my sister, cause I had no idea what to do anymore. I, I, I was like, I, I can't do this. Like, I don't know what to say. I don't know where to go from here. So I just handed her the phone and once she hung up, she said, you know mom wants to come down here, but I told her not to because she can't drive well at night. And I I'm scared for her being so excited right now that I'm scared for her driving. And, you know, would you be willing to drive up there? And I, we were like, oh my God. Yes, yes. Where is there? And, and she said, Connecticut, she lives up, you know, it's about two, two and a half hours from, from here.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:58:01):
So we were like yeah, of course. That's, you know, absolutely. So we went to dinner with my sister and like a, a good Korean older sister would do. She took us to the, the market and she bought us all these snacks and <laugh> these gifts and, you know, ed us up with those things. And we got in the car and drove. And at that point it was, you know, it was night at that point. And we I was exhausted from the emotions of everything, but also because of my pregnancy and in the first trimester. So I just passed out and slept the entire drive up to her house and woke up to my husband, shaking me, like, we're here, we're here. And we got out of the car and it was about nine 30 at night at that point. And she lives in this the buildings were all, you know, like one story homes that had their own front door, almost like a motel, like it, their own door, but all connected building and kind of, and, and it is like a senior housing sort of place.
Corissa Saint Laurent (00:59:13):
And so we got to her front door and knocked and then, you know, yeah, within seconds, I'm, I'm standing face to face with my birth mother and still again, in, in that shock, amazement, protective bubble kind of place taking it all in and trying to stay centered and trying not to it's. It's so interesting cuz I think I was trying so much to be there that I wasn't there in some ways, you know, I was there in that vigilant state, but not so much there in that emotional body. So we go in to her place and we go and she brings us in the living room. We sit on the floor and then you know, proceed to just connect and have this, you know, reconnection and moment of just looking at each other and crying. And it was a lot of more of her crying than me crying and she would, you know, we would talk and she was, you know, we're holding hands and then we'd be talking and, and sharing and then she would just collapse into my lap and ball.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:00:26):
And, and, and so, and, and just say, I'm so sorry. I'm so sorry. And you know, and I was consoling her for a large part portion of our initial reunion and it felt good to do that. It felt good to, to be there for her because I realized how much she loved me and I realized how painful it was for her to have given me up and how wanted I really was. And so as much as it could seem like, oh, wow, she wasn't there for you, like in your tears and in your moment, it was exactly what I needed from her to feel how deeply she loved me. And so we had, you know, this, this exchange or this moment, and from the, from the moment we walked in, I felt comfortable. Like I didn't recognize her at all. Didn't have, you know, wasn't like, oh, I know this woman. And I didn't have these memories flood into my mind of, of her and our time together. But I felt the knowing, I felt so comfortable with her. And so did my husband, we, we just, just felt like we knew her.
Adapted Podcast (01:01:47):
You felt like you belonged to her or
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:01:49):
Yes. Yeah. And it just felt comfortable and normal. It wasn't this like weird of who is this person and what, okay. Now we're gonna like sit down in her living room and it, it just, just felt comfortable. And so our evening proceeded and sharing, you know, just asking without it, you know, I wanted to know everything, right. Like in that moment wanted to know it all, but you know, how much can, you know, and hear and take in, even in this initial meeting. And so we would talk and then she would share, and then I would share. And then at one point she goes over to her little cabinet kind of night, you know, nightstand in her living room and opens it up and brings over this little crochet purse and opens up the crochet purse. And she has in plastic wrap all of these photos and they were all my baby photos.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:02:47):
And so she had the, all the, the pictures from my, you know, my baby from when I was a baby to the last photo of her and I together before she gave me up and we're going through these photos and I'm just, you know, again, again, not as emotional as I am right now. I was more just like so excited and amazed. And I couldn't believe in, ah, like just in this state of, of amazement. And and then I get to the last two photos and they are of my parents, my adoptive parents. And it was just this crazy, like full circle moment of going well, how do you have these? And she she's just like, well, they gave them to me. They said, these are the people you're that are, that are gonna raise you and your new parents. And I just, it was such a crazy, surreal moment.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:03:42):
I'm seeing my parents, the photos that they had sent to the orphanage, like, oh, Hey, we're good. Happy, you know, <laugh> upstanding, you know, couple and here we are. And so I see the photos, she pulls out my birth certificate, she had that wrapped up in aluminum foil and it's, you know, all in Korean, so I couldn't read it at all, but it was just really interesting to hold. And then she pulls out this tape of little cassette tape. And she said, when she, when she made the decision and knew that she was going to give me up, she had she recorded me and, and me in, in different exchanges with this woman or friend of hers, a woman who was a, apparently some sort of semi-famous singer in South Korea. And she just recorded me.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:04:43):
So we played the tape and I heard my three year old self talking away and talking with my mom and her friend. And then, and talking with my mom and then it's my friend or her friend and I singing a song together and it's not, you know, a CRA you know, real, crazy long tape, but I hear myself and I'm speaking Korean and it's just, it's like, you know, listening to and hearing about somebody else, you know, it's, it was it. Although I'm sitting with my mother and listening to myself, it, it was like, that was somebody else. Right. And I knew it was me. And I knew that this, and, and I hadn't yet made that connection in my heart that this is me, this is my life. And felt it at the, the depths that I have since felt it in that moment, it was just utter amazement that couldn't believe I was in this moment.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:05:53):
So we end up sleeping over her place <laugh> and she gave us her bed and she slept out in the living room. And we went to breakfast with her the next morning and talked more and, and spent more time together. And but it was kind of overwhelming, you know, it was overwhelming of a, an experience. And we already had this rest of this trip planned in New York. So we went back down and, and went to, and we stayed at our friends in Brooklyn and just processed, processed that whole thing. But the, the CRA you know, the crazy thing about is that we drove up right from meeting my sister and flushing two and a half hours to her in Connecticut. And then we lived two and a half hours north in New Hampshire. And she literally lived like smack dab between the two of us.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:06:45):
So for the, for three more years from that moment because I was pregnant, I was in my first trimester. She she was the first one, you know, to the hospital when I had my son. And she came up and stayed with us for a week at and, and took care of me. When we, when I got home from the hospital and spent, you know, we were lived in that area for three years. So we got to spend a, a ton of time with her in that first three years. And then we moved to LA. So since then from that moment that we've moved to LA, we haven't seen her nearly as much. And, you know, we don't really talk on the phone. It's hard to have a conversation with her on the phone. It's, it's much harder to understand her English over the phone than it is when we're in person.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:07:36):
And so yeah, it's, it's been, it was this highly concentrated reunion time, which was the most special thing I could have asked for, you know, to, to just even one, to know about her, to know she was a real person and existed was, you know, like the first gift. And then it was knowing her name and this information and hearing all these details is like, that was a gift. And then knowing that, wow, she's, she is you know even more real by talking to my aunt and talking to her ex-husband it's just like she be, she it's like, she materialized in front of me during this period of time into a real flesh and blood person who I got to hug and, and who got to feed me, <laugh>, you know, she would feed me, you know things, little bites of food when, and she always cooked for us every time we visited amazing cook.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:08:41):
So she would make us food. And on that first night, actually, that we met her, she had she had some time to prepare cause we drove up, you know, two and a half hours from and we had gone to dinner with my sister. So she had all this time. So when we arrived, she had made, you know, dinner for us. And she, even though we had just come from dinner, but she made all of what she remembered were my favorite foods from when I was little. So it wasn't a full blown dinner. It was more like snacks and things, but she made those things. And so we're, we had a really incredible three years. And then since then less time together. And, and now she's, you know, she's getting older. She was an older mom, all of the, the, all of the preconceptions or assumptions that I had about her were wrong.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:09:35):
You know, single young destitute on the streets, all of these things like, no, she was 34 years old when she had me, she was a career woman. She owned a salon and soul, but because of the conditions there of, you know, being an UNW mother, it just wasn't tenable for her to keep me and she didn't have enough. You know, even though she's got a business, it's still, it's not like business ownership here where people, you think, oh, someone owns a business. Well, they they're gonna be successful or they are successful. It was just, you know, that was her job. And I think she just barely got by with that. And in doing that, and, you know, with the conditions in Korea at the time, no social services, nothing to support her and also such a stigmatized position to be in, to be an UNW mother.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:10:31):
You know, that, that's what all led to the relinquishment. So it's you know, it's, it's really interesting to, to look at the situation through not just the lens of my story, but the lens of the, the story of, of what adoption is or was, and is in Korea at that time. And then just, you know, what's, what's changing and then that within that landscape now but it, it is really, you know, the, the tragedy being, you know, what she felt forced to do, you know, and felt like it was her only option to, to do. And so yeah, so now she's, you know, she's in her eighties now and I'm not sure what, you know, I have all these, these moments of what, what happens in these later years, like what happens with her life now? You know, what happens with our relationship from here going forward? I don't have any answers for that for right now. And I don't feel settled in, in knowing what that is at this point. Our relationship still feels like it's a moment to moment thing when I, you know, each time I see her each time I talk to her, what it amounts to at that moment is what our relationship is. So, you know, we'll see, we'll see what the future holds for us.
Adapted Podcast (01:12:10):
So, Chris, I just some mental questions I had as you were speaking. So your mother was divorced from her previous husband in Korea and her, you have a half sister and a half brother who grew up with their father and your mother's in soul as a single, you know, as a divorced woman gets pregnant with you, but she's not married and made the decision that was sort of her reasoning that she felt like she had to give you up.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:12:42):
Yes. Yeah. So the, what, you know, what she explained and what also I've read and heard and learned about from, from many other stories is that, you know, the conditions were when you divorced in Korea, your children went to the father's family to the, to the patriarchy and were raised by the that side of the family. So she essentially lost that connection. I mean, the, they would come and see her. I think it was my sister more than my brother would come and see her in the summers. But you know, that's, she, she lost her children in that divorce essentially. Then she meets my birth father who, you know, who knows what happened in between, but then she meets my birth father. He's married. He has a family. I have nine half sisters in Japan. Apparently <laugh>, this is from what I have heard. So she meets him in Korea when he's there for business
Adapted Podcast (01:13:45):
He's he's Japanese.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:13:47):
Well, you know, come to find out he's not, but he had moved to Japan and given up his Korean identity. So when we found out about him from the orphanage, they said, gave me his name and said, he's he's Japanese because he had a Japanese name. So I thought for two years that I was half Japanese, but come to find out he's actually Korean he's from Jesu do. And he had moved to Japan because of the times again, and the conflict and, you know, everything, the relationship between Japan and Korea, if you moved to Japan as a Korean person, you gave, typically would give up your Korean identity. So that you could just move through Japan with more ease. Even though I think a lot of people knew you were Korean, just, you would, you know, give, become Japanese. So he became Japanese, married a Japanese woman, I think maybe he also even had some other well mistreses wives, co others in there, but he ended up having nine daughters.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:14:53):
And so when he met my mother and then I was born and I was a daughter too. I think that was his maybe final straw of trying to get a son and that didn't happen. And so he did help her for the first two years of my life with money and support. And then he told her at some point, you know, I, I can't do this anymore and I've, I've, I've gotta, you know, cut you off. So he cut her off from any help. And she did, interestingly, went to Japan and went to his house and stayed with them, stayed with his wife and the kids and him and pleaded with him to, to help continue helping. I, she didn't bring me, I apparently stayed in Seoul with friends, but she went and did this sort of last ditch effort to try to see if he would help her.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:15:53):
And, you know, the answer was no. And she came back and then, then at that point, she had been approached by this woman who had befriended her, who told her, you know, there's all these families, and there's all these people who want children from here and she'll have a better life if you send her away. And, and she was befriended by this woman who essentially convinced her that it would be a better situation. And I don't know if that's, you know, I don't know if that's true or not true. I mean, I think with the state of the way it was in Korea where she wouldn't have been helped in any way, she, would've not been able to get a job necessarily being an UN mother. I wouldn't have had an identity because apparently from what I've learned is that you, I wouldn't have had a last name because I didn't, my father was unknown.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:16:45):
And so we would've been, especially me really at the bottom of the social rank and status. And so in the, and if you look at it through that lens, yes, I probably would've had a better life elsewhere. But then of course you look through it from just the, the pure connection of, of mother, child and the breaking of that bond and all the trauma that both of us experienced through that. And, and question, of course, was it better that, you know, is, is money or economic circumstance, the only thing here. And so I don't have the answer to that for myself. I do know that having grown up in the, the way that I did that there are losses, and then there are gains on both sides of it on both, you know, both from having left and from having entered my birth fam you know, my adoptive family, all of it, right.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:17:47):
It's all just a mix of so many pros and cons, pluses, minuses, light, dark, all of it. So I don't know anything else about my birth father besides what she's told me. And what was in that, the original adoption record. I the only photo she had of him was the two of them standing together. And she, when she brought it out, this was also in her little crochet purse with photos. She had the picture and it was folded <laugh>, she, she had creased it in between him and, and her, you know, in a state of, you know anger about him. And but I, I saw that photo and, and saw him and, and, and I have a picture. I can see him in my mind right now. He was a lot older than her though. I think he was 30 years older than her. So he would yeah, he would be, oh, man, I don't know how he would be old now how old he would be now, but
Adapted Podcast (01:18:59):
He's, he's no longer alive.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:19:01):
He's no longer alive. He was she was told by a friend of his, that he had died years ago she was told this. And so she doubted it at the time and I don't know why she doubted it. I think she thought that he was maybe trying to not be found by her. So she doubted it because of that, but I think he would buy a, like, I don't think he would be able to be alive right now if he's there. Yeah, no, he wouldn't. Unless he was pretty, you know, superhuman <laugh>, he's deceased.
Adapted Podcast (01:19:36):
How was it where you've met your, your eomma and you have this life inside of you at the same time. Yeah. Did you feel like somehow you were doing it for your child or did you feel like somehow your child was speaking to you through that experience of searching and that there was some kind of circle being connected?
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:20:01):
Oh yeah. It, it was a complete full circle moment of sitting there with her, seeing that photo of my adoptive parents being pregnant with my son, just a, you know, I, I, I don't even know if circle is the right word for full, full spherical. <Laugh>, you know, it was bigger than that. It was, it was it was amazing. And what she shared with me that really brought it even more full circle was when I asked her how she named me, or what does my name mean to you? And why did you name me bill name? She said, bill that it means star. But the honorific form of the, the word star. And she named me that because when she was pregnant with me, she woke up in the middle of the night from a dream that was so powerful of this shooting star coming down from, you know, space and crashing to earth and it woke her up and she knew that it was me and she named me M because of that dream.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:21:12):
And then she sits there. She's like, I remember had that dream many other time, except for I had it two months ago. I had this dream two months ago. And then mark and I look at each other and we were like, wait a minute. And we were like, when, when did you have that dream? She's like, oh, this and she, you know, takes us back two months. And we tell her, I'm like, that's when we conceived, our son was nine weeks ago. And she, she just sit and matter of factly, looks at us and goes, oh yeah, it was about your son or not our son. She didn't use that term. We didn't know we were having a boy at the time. She's like, it's about your baby. And she was so matter of fact about it, like, oh yeah, that's, that's just, you know, no question that this, this dream that she had again was about our baby. And just added another level of, of wonderment around the whole thing.
Adapted Podcast (01:22:45):
Maybe you can talk a little bit about it on the podcast, your plans to write a, a memoir or a book.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:22:52):
Yeah. I've been working on it since, since we met her and originally it was gonna be really a, a straight up adoption memoir or a adoptee memoir of my experience finding her. But over the last 10, 11 years, it's really transformed. It's taken on a few different forms, but I, more recently I picked it back up. I've, I've put it back down many times and not been writing. And I recently started writing again, and it's now very clear what the story is. And so it's been an intense <laugh> few months. So it's may now I started writing again in December, and it's been a, a massive healing journey for me to write this book again, because I'm now experiencing the things that I sheltered myself from during the actual birth search <laugh>. So going to Korea, going through the, the hunting for her re reuniting with her, everything I've experienced, even since then I'm now feeling the weight of that in a, in a, at a depth that I've never experienced before, which has all come through, the writing has come through, picking it back up. So the book is taking on a new form now than it ever has. And I'm, I'm really grateful for the process,
Speaker 4 (01:24:34):
You know I've heard from other adoptees who become parents that having a child yourself is healing. Would you say that's true? That's been true for you?
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:24:46):
Oh yeah. Very, very true. 
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:24:52):
I had a moment when I probably was most true in the moment when when my son was three and he was the age that I was when I was adopted and just looking at him and feeling, feeling my loss of what that was would've been like, and also feeling my mother's loss of what that must have been like for her, because of how deeply bonded I was to my son and how bonded he was to me, how much we shared and how developed he was and how much of a person he was already at that age. And so it was a really healing journey. <Laugh> just in, in that particular experience, it was probably most highlighted in that particular moment of time within his his 10 years on this planet. And then overall, yeah, it's, it's been it's been a I would say more, I I've realized and because healing, of course with healing comes crisis, right?
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:26:10):
There's healing crises, there's healing, epiphanies, there's you know, healing's not what it sounds like to, some people evolve, like the soothing part, right. Healing is ugly and it is hard and it is painful. And it's all of those things too. And then yes, like the, the, the end result of the healing is the, ah, and the soothing, the calm and the, you know, the relief and the, all those beautiful moments, but the, the painful aspects of the healing when it's most scabby <laugh> right. And most painful are you know, have I've experienced all of that within that this 11 years as well. And so I've, I've got, I've really got to experience that through having a child. And so some of the uglier parts are, are really recognizing how, how in fear I still was in my body. You know, every time my husband and son would leave the house, I would be like running around all panicked as they were leaving.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:27:19):
Like, okay, wait, don't forget this. And like, you, we'll gonna put a hat on and all, wait, he needs another scarf. And like, and I would just be a crazy person when they would leave the house. And my husband is highly capable, a highly conscientious person knew what he was doing and also loves my son more than anything in the world. And so there was no reason in rational world to be acting that way. And I realized through it all, I am fully reacting from this place of I'm so afraid of doing it wrong. I'm so afraid of my son suffering in any way. I'm so afraid of, of not being the best mother I can be to him because of, of my, my childhood. So it's yeah, it's been a wild ride being a parent and it's, it's still through every phase of parenting. There's more to learn there.
Adapted Podcast (01:28:23):
I just had a thought you know, when you, that touch point of when you saw your, you know, when your son was three and probably all those emotions of in a way, did you sort of, are you mothering yourself when you're mothering him?
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:28:39):
Absolutely. You know, part of what I've realized in the, the writing over this last six months is, is exactly that, is that what I have needed most through the reunion with my mother, the becoming a parent myself what I've needed most is the becoming the parent to myself that I've always needed, that I, that I missed out on. And and everything that a loving, nurturing, stable, and present parent would be. So yes, I do that for my son, but have realized how much I've neglected doing that for myself and, and how needed it is to do so that yes, that you hit the nail in the head. That is what I've been experiencing the most in the last six months is this deep reparenting or self parenting journey. And doing that while also being a parent, right. Of not stepping away from that responsibility and job and doing that while being a wife and, and not wanting to, you know, to still be able to show up and be present in those places.
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:30:08):
So it's also interconnected of, of it's it's for myself, but it's for them too, it's within and, and, and an such an only experience, but it's also an experience that I get to share with them as I go through it. And I thankfully have a very loving and supportive husband who will ride this ride with me and, and go through the process of, of what you know, all the ugly stuff that I don't want to do. He's like, yeah, let's do it. Come on. <Laugh>. And they're like, wants me to step out and into that you know, just step off the ledge, just the, take that step in and go into these really, really hard places. He never pushes me into those hard places, but he welcomes it. And when I go there, he's there. And he, and so that's the, what's been really revealing about him and our relationship over the last six months too, is that I've been so scared to be vulnerable, but it's what he's most wanted from me is to be vulnerable. And also what he most needs from me too, is to be vulnerable so that he can be too,
Adapted Podcast (01:31:50):
If somebody wants to get a hold of you, Cara, how can they, and how can they
Corissa Saint Laurent (01:31:54):
Do it? Yes, they certainly can. And I would love to, to speak with, and connect to, and, and also support anyone who may need someone to talk to about their journey and where they're at and, and, and any part of it, you know, I've, I've been through, you know, certainly it's been my own unique experience, but I think there's so much that we can all relate to and, and support each other in. So I would love any of that. And you can go to my website, it's my full name.com. So Carissa Saint lawrence.com and connect with me through there.
Adapted Podcast (01:32:39):
Thank you so much, Clarissa for the courageousness to walk us through your life and all of its complexities and challenges being vulnerable is a gift to others. And you've shown us how through your generous sharing, bringing these stories takes a considerable amount of time and effort. You can help out by supporting us through our patreon. All our patreon subscribers receive early access to episodes. Give what you can go to patreon.com/adaptedpodcast until next time be well I'm Kaomi Lee.
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